
 

Memorandum 
TO:  Mayor Wythe and Homer City Council   

FROM:  Katie Koester, City Manager 

DATE:  August 17, 2016 

SUBJECT: City Manager’s Report – August 22, 2016  

Dispatch 
The Kenai Peninsula Borough Mayor’s office has engaged City Administration since fall of last 
year on a proposal to consolidate dispatch services. Concerned about losing their contract 
with the State for Dispatch, they have reached out to Seward, Kenai and Homer to gauge 
interest in consolidation. Soldotna Police Department already dispatches through the 
Borough, though their cost would go up under this proposal.  City administration has actively 
participated, providing stats and attending meetings. This is not the first time consolidation 
has come up. The proposal to consolidate dispatch has been floated a number of times 
during Chief Robl’s tenure, and the City has always come to the conclusion that although the 
idea of greater efficiency with consolidated services sounds good, it begins to fall apart in the 
details. This round is no different, though the stakes are potentially higher with the budget 
being so tight. I have run the numbers and see no long term cost savings for the City. 
Administrative staff would have to be retained, and PERS termination study penalties would 
be incurred. There are also considerable risks including equipment failure, loss of local 
knowledge, and loss of control over how dispatch services are provided to the City and what 
we are charged for them. I have attached both the Borough’s proposal and my response 
which provides a more detailed analysis of a complicated topic. Up until now I have refrained 
from digging into the details publicly as I want to be sensitive to the hard working and 
dedicated public servants who answer to our 911 calls any time of day or night and make sure 
they know their jobs are not on the line. Dispatch is a notoriously difficult position to fill and 
we have a great team there now. I would hate to lose any of them based on the 
misconception their job is at risk and want to ensure any Dispatcher reading this that is not 
the case. Nevertheless, this is an important enough topic that Council needs to be in the loop. 
The Borough would like an opportunity to address you on the topic. Would you like to extend 
an invitation to Mayor Navarre to present to Council during Committee of the Whole at the 
next Council meeting (September 12)? Mayor Navarre and Larry Persily are scheduled as 
visitors for the regular meeting to discuss the KPB ballot propositions that will go before the 
voters this fall.   
 
Operation Northern Edge 
After the passage of Resolution 16-081(A), Opposing Siting and Timing of U.S. Navy Training 
Exercises that Pose Risks to Fish and Fisheries in the Gulf of Alaska, I was contacted by 
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Senator Murkowski’s office who emphasized Senator Murkowski’s involvement in insisting 
that the Navy and Alaskan Command work with local communities regarding exercise 
scheduling and activities. Murkowski’s staff will be meeting with the Navy this month and will 
request they reinitiate consultation with the City of Homer. I have extended an open 
invitation to Senator Murkowski’s staff on this topic, and let them know how much the City 
appreciates that this issue has not dropped off their radar.   
 
Audit Presentation Scheduled for September 26 
Auditors across Alaska are waiting for information from the State on PERS to be able to 
finalize the 2015 audits. The State should release that information next week and the audit 
firm, BDO, is scheduled to present to you September 26. The date has been delayed by 
months, however I am glad Council will have information on 2015 before budget talks for 
2017 begin.  
 
Assistant Fire Chief Position Funded through SAFER Grant 
I am ecstatic to announce that the City of Homer has received a SAFER grant through 
Homeland Security for an assistant fire chief at the Homer Volunteer Fire Department. This is 
a two-year grant that fully funds (salary and benefits, $248,000 over two years) an assistant 
chief position. As you are aware, an assistant chief position has been on the books but not 
funded for many years due to budget constraints. In my opinion, this position is the number 
one staffing need for the City. This position will have a dramatic impact on the department, 
the volunteers, and our department’s responsiveness and readiness. The morale boost to the 
crew to know they have help cannot be articulated. The timing could not be better. This 
position will have such a positive impact on our community, and allow the department to 
play a bigger role in the community. If you were in my office on Wednesday morning you 
would have seen me doing my best happy dance yet. I should have a grant agreement in 
September for Council to accept by Ordinance.  
 
Sales Tax and Vacation Rentals by Owner 
At the August 8 Council meeting while discussing budget priorities, Council brought up a 
question about how vacation rentals (Airbnb and VRBO, for example) are taxed. I contacted 
Larry Persily with the Borough and he confirmed that their lodging transactions are taxable--
though compliance can be difficult. The sales tax staff scans the websites (Airbnb and VRBO) 
on a monthly basis looking for unregistered businesses.   
 
From Mr. Persily, “A couple of points to keep in mind: Under the proposed code revision, 
anyone taking in less than $2,500 a year would be exempt from collecting sales tax. So the 
low-priced room that gets rented out 30 nights a year at $60 a night would be tax exempt. 
And, also under the code revision, we clarify and reaffirm that either the property owner pays 
the tax or Airbnb pays the tax, we don’t really care much which one. (We don’t say Airbnb by 
name, but reference out-of-borough businesses with an agent or business link in the 
borough.) Though, admittedly, it will be easier to collect from the local rental operator. This 
same provision would apply to Amway, Shaklee and other distributors who use local agents 
to peddle their goods.” 
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Lunch with a Councilmember 
With fall around the corner (though it seems like it has settled in already), the timing is right 
to resurrect Lunch with a Councilmember, as long as Councilmembers are still up for it.  
The Library Director spoke with the Friends who sponsor this event. Their suggestions are: 

• Start in October 
• Do it the same day every month through March 
• Send out the schedule to all the non-profits and other organizations we can think of in 

town 
• Have councilmembers sign up in advance so the Friends can make one poster (with 

the election in October we should wait till the second meeting to circulate a signup 
sheet) 

 
Questions for Council are: 
   

• Is the first Council Monday of the month still the preferred day? 
• If so, would someone like to sign up for Oct. 10th? 
• Any other suggestions (timing, etc.)? - the Friends are open to ideas. 

 

Enc: 
Draft Dispatch Consolidation Proposal from KPB  
City of Homer Response  
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